ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 6, 2011
1: 06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Eric Feige, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton, Co-Chair
Representative Al an Dick
Representati ve Neal Foster
Representati ve Bob Herron
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Munoz
Representative Berta Gardner
Representative Scott Kawasaki

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Vice Chair

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S): Board of Gane; Board of Fisheries
- HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 186

"An Act relating to the authority of the comm ssioner of fish
and game with regard to the inportation or relocation of wood
bison in the state.™

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 20

Uging the President of the United States, the United States
Congress, and the Secretary of the United States Departnent of
Agriculture not to inplement protection of inventoried roadl ess
areas under the "roadless rule" or otherwise restrict the
devel opment of necessary hydroelectric projects in the Tongass
Nat i onal Forest and the Chugach National Forest.

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO 195

"An Act relating to the regulation and use of pesticides and
broadcast chem cals.”

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- April 6, 2011



Bl LL HEARI NG CANCELED

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 186
SHORT TI TLE: WOOD Bl SON
SPONSOR( s) :

03/10/ 11
03/10/ 11
04/ 04/ 11
04/ 04/ 11
04/ 04/ 11
04/ 06/ 11

EEEEEE:

BILL: HIR 20

REPRESENTATI VE(s) DI CK

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
RES

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

REFERRALS

SHORT TI TLE: ROADLESS RULE & CHUGACH AND TONGASS HYDRO

SPONSOR( s) :

03/09/ 11
03/ 09/ 11
03/17/ 11
03/17/ 11
03/ 22/ 11
03/ 22/ 11
03/ 22/ 11
03/ 23/ 11
03/ 23/ 11

NN AN AN AN NN NN

04/ 06/ 11

L TS

~

W TNESS REG STER

NI CK YURKO, Appoi ntee
Al aska Board of Gane
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT:
Gane.

Testified as appointee

REPRESENTATI VE(s) JOHANSEN

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
ENE, RES

ENE AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124
Schedul ed But Not Heard
ENE AT 3: 00 PM BARNES 124

REFERRALS

Moved CSHIR 20(ENE) Qut of Conmmittee

M NUTE( ENE)
ENE RPT CS(ENE) 6DP
DP:  LYNN, TUCK, PETERSEN,

PRU TT, FOSTER
RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

to

WLLIAM S. BROMN, PhD, Appointee

Al aska Board of Fisheries
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON  STATENMENT:
Fi sheri es.

Rl CKY GEASE, Executive D
Kenai

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

Testified as appointee

to

rector

Ri ver Sportfishing Association (KRSA)

Apri

SADDLER

the Board of

the Board of

6, 2011



Sol dot na, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of Dr. Bill Brown
during the confirmation hearing to the Board of Fisheries.

REUBEN HANKE

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the appointnent of
Dr. Bill Brown to the Board of Fisheries.

ANDY SZCESNY

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the appointnent of
Dr. Bill Brown to the Al aska Board of Fisheries.

JOHN E. JENSEN, Appointee

Board of Fisheries

Pet ersburg, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Fi sheri es.

JERRY MCCUNE, Lobbyi st

Uni ted Fi shernen of Al aska (UFA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the appointnent of
John E. Jensen to the Board of Fisheries.

Rl CKY GEASE, Executive Director

Kenai Ri ver Sportfishing Association (KRSA)

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the reappointnent
of John E. Jensen to the Board of Fisheries.

REUBEN HANKE

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the reappointnent
of John E. Jensen to the Board of Fisheries.

ANDY SZCESNY

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the reappointnent
of John E. Jensen to the Board of Fisheries.

SUSAN JEFFREY, Appoi ntee

Al aska Board of Fisheries

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Board
of Fisheri es.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 6, 2011



DON FOX

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the confirmation hearing
for the Board of Gane.

LI NDA KOZAK

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of appointee Susan
Jeffrey to the Al aska Board of Fisheries.

PAUL VERHAGEN, St aff

Representative Al an Dick

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Revi ewed the background documents during
t he hearing on HB 186.

EDWARD GRASSER, Lobbyi st

Safari Club International

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 186.

M KE SATRE, Executive Director

Counci | of Al aska Producers

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 186.

BRYCE WRI GLEY
Del ta Junction, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the di scussion of HB 186.

DON QUARBERG
Del ta Junction
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 186.

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director

Al aska M ners Associ ation (AVA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 186.

EUGENE PAUL

Holy Cross Tribal Counci

Holy Cross, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 186.

STEVEN MENDI VE
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- April 6, 2011



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 186.

REPRESENTATI VE KYLE JOHANSEN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the prinme sponsor of HIR 20.

FLOYD KOOKESH
Angoon, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 20.

JI M STRANDBERG, Project Manager

Al aska Industrial Developnent & export Authority (AIDEA) and
Al aska Energy Authority (AEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 20.

JOHN SANDOR, Board Menber

Al aska- Canada Energy Coalition

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported HIR 20.

FRED MORI NO
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 20.

DUFF M TCHELL, Busi ness Manager

Juneau Hydropower, Inc.

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 20.

SHELLY WRI GHT, Executive Director

Sout heast Conf erence

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 20.

PETER NAORQZ, Ceneral Manager and President

Koot znoowoo, | nc.

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 20.

M KE SATRE, Executive Director

Counci | of Al aska Producers (CAP)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 20.

ERI C LEE

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 6, 2011



Pet er sburg, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HIR 20.

MARI LYN LELAND

Executive Director

Al aska Power Associ ation (APA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 20.

JOSEPH SEBASTI AN
Pet er sburg, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HIR 20.

TI M ROONEY, Bor ough Manager

City & Borough of Wangell (CBW

W angel |, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 20.

DAVE CARLSON, Chief Executive Oficer

Sout heast Al aska Power Associ ati on ( SEAPA)

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 20.

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director

Al aska M ners Associ ati on (AVA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 20.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:06: 26 PM

COCHAIR ERIC FEIGE called the House Resources Standing
Committee neeting to order at 1:.06 p.m Represent ati ves Fei ge,
Seaton, Dick, Gardner, Herron, and Mmnoz were present at the
call to order. Represent ati ves Kawasaki and Foster arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S): Al aska Board of Gane

1: 07: 20 PM

CO- CHAI R FElI GE announced that the first order of business woul d
be the Confirmati on Hearing of Nick Yurko to the Board of Gane.

1: 07: 39 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 6, 2011



Nl CK YURKO, Appointee, Alaska Board of Ganme, provided his

background, including that he is a 40-year Al askan resident,
worked for the school district, and did a wde-range of
volunteer work in the community. He related he has served on

t he Juneau/ Dougl as Advisory Commttee for over 30 years, on the
Territorial Sportsnen's Golden North Sal mon Derby organization
as a nenber and as fish chair. Additionally, he stated that
serves as chair of a non-profit organization in Juneau, "Helping
Hands. " He was one of the original founders of the Juneau
Archery Club and is still involved including teaching archery to
boys and girls. He concluded by comrenting he and his famly
reside in Juneau and he really |ikes Juneau.

1: 09: 53 PM

REPRESENTATIVE DICK related that Interior Al aska was devastated
by the predator issue in the late 1990s, in particular, wth
respect to noose and cari bou by wolves and bears. He asked for
M. Yurko's position on predator control.

MR. YURKO responded that he has not taken currently taken a
stand since he has not seen all the data on the program He
acknowl edged that he has been involved primarily in Southeast
Al aska.

REPRESENTATIVE DICK referred M. Yurko to the Al aska Departnent
of Fish & Gane's (ADF&S) website as a source of neutral and
scientific information. He urged M. Yurko to reviewit.

MR. YURKO offered his wllingness to work with ADF&G on the
matter.

1:11: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked why he is interested in serving on
t he Al aska Board of Gane.

MR. YURKO responded that he is retired and thinks sone of the
resource issues need to be addressed. He explained that his
background, having served 30 years with the Juneau/ Dougl as Fish
and Gane Advisory Commttee, places him in the position to
provi de assistance wth sonme of the ADF&G s prograns.

1:12: 18 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- April 6, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON inquired as to whether the Governor's
staff interviewed himand if so, what question surprised himthe
nost .

MR. YURKO answered that he felt overwhel med and honored to be
chosen as a representative to serve on the Board of Gane.

1:12: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON pointed out that he has a reputation of
bei ng one of the best trappers in Southeast Al aska.

MR. YURKO said, "I've been noted for that over the years.”
1:13: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said he is also noted for being one of the
ol dest trappers.

MR. YURKO answered that he is 69 years old, but still |oves the
outdoors and still traps al one.
1:13:34 PM

CO CHAIR FEIGE noted M. Yurko is part owner of Wngs of Al aska
air service. He inquired as to whether the conpany is involved
in transporting gane and hunters. He related his understanding
that M. Yurko was not a pilot.

MR. YURKO agreed he is not a pilot. He el aborated on the air
services that Wngs of Al aska provides, primarily to transport
tourists to Taku Lodge and on glacier flightseeing trips.

1:15: 07 PM

CO CHAIR SEATON stated that the House Resources Standing
Commttee has reviewed the qualifications of N ck Yurko to the
Board of Gane.

CO- CHAIR SEATON nobved to advance the confirmation for the
appointee referred to the House Resources Standing Comittee,
Ni ck Yurko, and to refer his nane for consideration to the joint
session of the House and Senate for consideration. Each
menber's signature on the commttee's report in no way reflects
the nmenber's vote during the joint floor session. There being
no objection, the confirmati on was advanced.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 6, 2011



Al aska Board of Fi sheries

1:15: 25 PM

CO-CHAI R FEI GE announced that next order of business would be
confirmation hearing of Wlliam S. Brown to the Al aska Board of
Fi sheri es.

1: 15: 28 PM

WLLIAM S. BROWN, PhD, Appointee, Al aska Board of Fisheries,
i ntroduced hinsel f. He stated that he has lived in Al aska for
the past 20 years, is single and has no children. He referenced
his resunme in nenbers' packets and read from a witten
statenent, as foll ows:

| have served on the Board of Fish for one three-year
term The main reason I'd like to be confirned for a
second termis the sanme reason | applied in the first

pl ace. | want to help preserve our fishery resources
for our children, our grandchil dren, and their
chi | dren. Managed correctly our fish wll [ast

forever but only if they' re nmanaged correctly.

| think | bring two things to the Board of Fish.
First, ny degree in econom cCs: | hold a doctorate in
econoni cs and spent over twenty years teaching coll ege
before | retired in 2000, provided training and
statistical nethods, population dynamcs, and the
economc rationale for fishing regulation. My

background in statistics proved especially valuable ny
first term on the board because it enabled nme to
understand and anal yze the nodels used to estinmate the
optimal sustained yield and other key paraneters
inmportant in designing regulations. Second, ny
training in economcs also helps nme understand and
calcul ate the economc inpact of fisheries around the
state. Bi ol ogy matters and social issues matter, but
so does economc inpact, especially to our coastal
comunities.

My first term on the board was not uneventful, not by
a long shot. | didn't have a clue as to how nuch work
was involved. For exanple, we had over 8,000 pages on
[indiscernible], 8,000 of reading material for the
upper Cook Inlet neeting. As a nenber of the board I
had to nmake tough decisions, many of which were

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 6, 2011



unpopul ar in sone circles. And while few were bashfu
in telling nme how nuch they liked a particular
decision, | note that ny votes were the product of
careful and | ogical consideration.

I take the board seriously. I recognize its
i mportance, and | want to inprove our fisheries, M.
Chair.

1:17:27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted that during M. Brown's testinony
before the House Special Committee on Fisheries a comrent had
been made that his background in econom cs sonetines gets in the
way of maki ng deci sions about fish.

DR. BROWN answered he would reject that comment out of hand. He
stated that his background in econom cs includes mathematics and
statistics, but also population dynam cs. He al so has taught a
course for Resource Economcs, which included one topic on

fishing regulations in Bristol Bay. The class discussed the
previous unlimted catch using sail boats. Currently, a 32-foot
boat requirement is in place. He affirnmed there are econonic
reasons for having these types of regulations. He offered his
belief that economcs is vital to understanding fisheries. He

remarked that he does not think his background in economcs
cl ouds his judgnent.

1:19: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON recalled a newspaper colum Dr. Brown
wote in response to a conment that his economcs were "creepy”
economni cs. He further recalled Dr. Brown's response included
the remark that econom cs does have "creepy" nonents. He asked
what was nmeant by his response.

DR BROM said he did not recall the particular colum in
guestion, but thought he knew what he had neant. In 1995, he
wote a textbook on economcs which sold quite well and all owed
him to retire. He explained that the last section of the
t ext book addressed what a person could do with an economcs
degr ee. He recalled a university survey by Purdue University.
The survey was given to incomng freshnen and asked students

half of which had taken economcs courses, to respond to a
variety of views on society. Two years later these sane
students were again surveyed and the results showed that the
students who studied econom cs becanme nore profit oriented with

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- April 6, 2011



many entering into private business. The people who did not
study economics gravitated to social work or the arts. He
remarked that economics is a way to think and affects how peopl e
behave.

1: 20: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER surm sed the nore mathematically m nded
students may have been the ones that took econom cs cl asses.

DR. BROWN agreed it mght be true and was a comment he also
made. He recalled that an introductory econom cs course is the
nost comonly taught course in many coll eges since the course is
required for so nmany nmjors. He further recalled that although
the students could take an introductory English literature
course could to neet the English academ c requirenents, but the
soci al sciences, business, or physics majors were required to
take an econom cs course. He pointed out that students who
choose to take additional econom cs classes nust be prepared to
do mat hemati cs.

1:22:12 PM
The conmmttee took an at-ease from1:22 p.m to 1:23 p.m
1:23:19 PM

Rl CKY  GEASE, Executive D rector, Kenai Ri ver Sportfishing
Association (KRSA), stated that he regularly attends the Board
of Fisheries neetings and has observed Dr. Brown during his
first term serving on the Board of Fisheries. He reported that
the KRSA finds Dr. Brown to be very well qualified for his
reappointnent to the Board of Fisheries. Dr. Brown has been
well prepared at the neetings, has participated by asking
guesti ons of st akehol ders and t he depart ment during
presentations, and listened to all user groups. He has found
Dr. Brown's background in econonmics and statistics provides a
good tool for the Board of Fisheries during deliberations. Dr.
Brown has frequently built the record for the board in positive
ways in terns of explaining economc information. Much of
fisheries conservation has been based on fisheries nodels and
Dr. Brown has denonstrated an excellent grasp on how nodeling

and statistics work. He reiterated Dr. Brown has worked to
ensure that board menbers have a good understandi ng of nodeling
during board discussions. He concluded that the KRSA fully

supports Dr. Brown's reappointnent to the Alaska Board of
Fi sheri es.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- April 6, 2011



1: 25: 30 PM

REUBEN HANKE stated that he has attended Board of Fisheries
nmeeti ngs statew de and has worked with Dr. Brown. He has found
Dr. Brown approachable, inclusive, and observed that Dr. Brown
conmes very well prepared to the neetings. He highlighted one of
Dr. Brown's strengths is the ability to assist other board
menbers in understanding the conplex nodeling. He said he |ooks
forward to Dr. Brown continuing to serve on the Board of
Fi sheri es.

1: 26: 33 PM

ANDY SZCESNY stated he has been a fly fishing guide for 25 years
and has participated in the Board of Fisheries hearings for over
20 years. He said he is in favor of Dr. Brown's confirmation to
the Board of Fisheries. He remarked that he has never seen
anyone nore prepared for Board of Fisheries neetings than Dr.
Brown. He urged nenbers to "push himforward."

1: 27: 31 PM

CO- CHAIR SEATON related that the House Resources Standing
Commttee has reviewed the qualifications of WIliam S. Brown,
PhD to the Board of Fisheries.

CO- CHAIR SEATON noved to advance the confirmation for the
appointee referred to the House Resources Standing Comittee,
Wlliam S. Brown, and to refer his name for consideration to the
joint session of the House and Senate for consideration. Each
menber's signature on the commttee's report in no way reflects
the nenber's vote during the joint floor session. There being
no objection, the confirmati on was advanced.

1:28: 09 PM
JOHN E. JENSEN, Appointee, Board of Fisheries, stated that he is

a lifelong resident of Petersburg. He graduated from Petersburg
Hi gh School and attended college prior to purchasing his first

fishing vessel and beginning his conmercial fishing career. He
said he is a third-generation Al askan and has comercially
fished since 1965. He has owned and operated six fishing

vessels from 1972 to the present, has participated in fisheries
in Sout heast Alaska, Bristol Bay, @lf of Alaska, Bering Sea,
Al eutian Islands, Al aska Peninsula, Cook Inlet, Prince WIIliam
Sound, and Western Al aska. He has obtained a 100-ton WMaster's

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- April 6, 2011



license and holds an assistant towing |icense. He highlighted
his interests as hunting, sport fishing, canping, woodworKking,
readi ng, and Al aska history. He remarked on his famly, stating
that he has been nmarried since 1972 and has two sons. He
detailed his professional nenberships, including his current
menbership with the United Fishernen of Alaska (UFA) and the
Pet ersburg Vessel Owners Association. He said he also serves on
the Petersburg Planning and Zoning Conm ssion and chairs the
Hal i but and Sabl efish Commttee for the Al aska Seafood Marketing
Institute (ASM). Additionally, he has served on the Petersburg
Advi sory Board for the past ten years. He expressed interest in

continuing service on the Board of Fisheries. He characteri zed
the Board of Fisheries' goal to ensure sustainable fisheries as
a difficult one. He concluded by saying his job has been

rewardi ng but one that requires effort.
1:30: 28 PM

JERRY MCCUNE, Lobbyist, United Fishernen of Al aska (UFA) on
behal f of the UFA, expressed support for the confirmation of
John E. Jensen for the Board of Fisheries. He offered that M.
Jensen has served three terns and has substantial know edge
about fisheries. He said, "W support him whol eheartedly, M.
Chai rman. "

1: 31: 53 PM

Rl CKY  GEASE, Executive D rector, Kenai Ri ver Sportfishing
Associ ation (KRSA), stated that M. Jensen is a great nenber of

the Board of Fisheries. He has been approachable to al

st akehol ders and user groups, he said. He holds extensive
knowl edge of comrercial fisheries in Al aska, as well as sport,
personal, and subsistence fisheries. He understands the
i nportance of commercial fishing and other fishing to the
coastal conmunities and Interior river systens. He has

performed well as a Board of Fisheries commttee chair and vice-
chair and has the KRSA's full support for reappointnent to the
Board of Fisheries.

1:32: 49 PM

REUBEN HANKE stated that M. Jensen has served on the Board of
Fisheries for nmany years and has done a great job. He said

"You can search high and low in Al aska for sonmebody that has as
much experience as John does in nost of the fisheries around the
state and that brings an unbelievable wealth of know edge to the
board. " He related that M. Jensen helps other board nenbers

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- April 6, 2011



understand how specific fisheries work. He hoped the comittee
will support M. Jensen and offered his full support for M.
Jensen' s reappointnent to the Board of Fisheries.

ANDY SZCESNY testified in favor of John Jensen's reappointnent.
He has nore substantial experience on the aspects of the
commercial fisheries than anyone else serving on the board, he
sai d.

1: 33: 49 PM

CO CHAIR SEATON stated that the House Resources Standing
Commttee has reviewed the qualifications of John E. Jensen, to
t he Board of Fisheries.

CO-CHAIR SEATON nmoved to advance the confirmation for the
appointee referred to the House Resources Standing Commttee,
John E. Jensen, and to refer his nanme for consideration to the

joint session of the House and Senate for consideration. Each
menber's signature on the commttee's report in no way reflects
the nmenber's vote during the joint floor session. There being

no objection, the confirmation was advanced
1:34: 23 PM

SUSAN JEFFREY, Appointee, Al aska Board of Fisheries, stated that
she has benefitted from Al aska's well-managed fisheries. She
said she noved to Kodiak in 1972 and her children and
grandchildren live in Al aska. She has directly participated in
Al aska's fisheries as a subsistence fisherman, sports fisherman,
and commercial fisherman. She worked as a fisheries witer and
editor for many publications which has helped her develop an
understanding of the conplexities involved in managi ng Al aska's
renewabl e fisheries resources. Since 2005, she has served on
the Kodiak Island Borough Assenbly which has given her an
understanding of the public process and the inportance of

careful ly st udyi ng i ssues bef ore entering into open
del i berati ons. She understands the concept that it is
i npossi ble to please everyone especially pertaining to fisheries
i ssues. She would like to serve on the board because she al so

understands that Alaska's fisheries are vital to the state and
its people. She enphasized Al aska's fisheries are so inportant
to Alaska that the state's constitution wi sely mandates its
natural resources be managed for sustainability and for maxinmm

benefit for Al askans. She further wunderstood the board is
charged with conserving and developing Alaska's fishery
resources for all users in comrercial, comercial sport,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- April 6, 2011



subsi stence, sport, and personal use fisheries. She pointed out
that naki ng decisions on any allocation nmatter requires carefu

analysis of scientific and socio-economc information presented
to the board and during public testinony. The board neetings
often involve earnest, passionate, and sonetinmes contentious
del i berative processes. She concluded that she is prepared for
this charge and chall enge. She offered her belief that only
with a fair, well-informed process can the state continue to
conserve and develop its world-class fisheries resources for the
benefit of our chil dren, our grandchi | dr en, and their
grandchi | dren.

1:37: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON renmarked that M. Jeffrey's resune is
outstanding and he comended her fisheries know edge. He
recalled during a television interview in Anchorage that she did
said she did not seek out service but had been asked to submt
her name to Boards and Conm ssions. He then asked which
gquestions posed by Boards and Conm ssion's staff surprised her.

M5. JEFFREY responded the question that stood out for her was
whi ch particular user group the other conmm ssioners would think
she represented. She said she answered that she did not think
it was her duty to represent a particular user group but rather
she shoul d represent all user groups.

1: 39: 17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER commented she enjoyed Ms. Jeffrey's final
personal statenent, which read:

It's not for the faint of heart but I'm willing to
serve because | Dbelieve only through a fair, well-
informed public process can the state w sely conserve
and develop its world-class fishery resources.

1: 39: 58 PM

DON FOX said he is a 40-year resident of Kodiak and a retired
commercial fisherman. He has also served on the Kodi ak Fish and
Gane Advisory Commttee for over twenty years so he has observed
M. Brown and M. Jensen on numerous occasi ons. Both nmen fully
explain the rationale they used on issues, which he appreciated
and while he has not always agreed wth their votes, he
understood their positions. He urged nenbers to confirm them
as appointees to the Board of Fisheries. He then turned to M.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 15- April 6, 2011



Jeffrey's appointment to the Board of Fisheries. He related
that he has known her for over 30 years. He characterized her
as a hard worker and a person who tries to see both sides of
i ssues. He offered his belief she does not have an agenda and
is open to listen to the public. He remarked that she is
probably the best fisheries reporter he has ever seen. He said,
"You can see in her articles her know edge and grasp of
fisheries. | would urge you to confirmher."

1: 41: 23 PM

LI NDA KOZAK stated she grew up in Bristol Bay and that her
famly has a salnon set net operation. She has lived in Kodiak
for 35 years and first net Susan Jeffrey when she was a reporter
for the Kodiak Daily Mrror. She had nmany experiences with her
during her service on the Kodiak Island Borough Assenbly. She
characterized Ms. Jeffrey as careful to review both sides of an

issue prior to making any reconmendation or decision. She
reported that she is happy to have recommended Ms. Jeffrey for
appointnent to the Board of Fisheries. She remarked that she

al so supports M. Brown and M. Jensen for reappointnment to the
Board of Fisheries.

1: 42: 39 PM

CO- CHAIR SEATON noved to advance the confirmation for the
appointee referred to the House Resources Standing Comittee,
Susan Jeffrey, and to refer her nane for consideration to the
joint session of the House and Senate for consideration. Each
menber's signature on the commttee's report in no way reflects
the nmenber's vote during the joint floor session. There being
no objection, the confirmati on was advanced.

1: 43: 00 PM
The conmttee took an at-ease from1:43 p.m to 1:46 p. m

HB 186- WOOD Bl SON

1:46: 08 PM

CO CHAI R FEI GE announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 186, "An Act relating to the authority of the
conmi ssioner of fish and gane wth regard to the inportation or
rel ocation of wood bison in the state.”

1: 46: 24 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- April 6, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE DI CK, speaking as prinme sponsor of HB 186, stated
has lived for 44 years in the area that the bison would be re-
i nt roduced. He advised that he is specifically famliar with
the villages of Holy Cross, Anvik, Shageluk, and Gayling. He
explained HB 186 does not prohibit the reintroduction of bison
but restricts re-locating bison wuntil nore information and
understanding of the inpact in doing so is considered. He
affirmed his trust in the current governor, but remarked that in
the past sone admnistrations have pronoted policies which have
been devastating to the country.

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK recalled opposition to the bill cautioning
t hat anyone shoul d make the deci sion except for the |egislature.
He remarked that a legislator will represent and have extensive
knowl edge of any specific area of proposed relocation of bison
Thus, the legislator is the one who would have a famliarity of

the situation at hand. He reiterated that his bill, HB 186 does
not oppose relocating bison, but the departnent nust only do so
wi th appropriate know edge. He remarked on the range of wood

bi son, noting that two wood bison wandered from Canada about
1,000 mles to the border between Al aska and Canada so the
animals have an extensive range. Further, the proposed
rel ocation of bison would occur within 50 mles of Donlin Creek,
whi ch provides the source of the only major resource available

to the Calista Corporation. The proposed location also lies
within 50 mles of the inactive Kako gold m ne. He further
advi sed nenbers that numerous pilot projects exist to consider
peat as a resource, and one place in particular lies near
MG at h. He expressed further concern over re-introduction of
bison in the area along the Yukon R ver since substantial peat
exists in the area. Since fuel prices are astronomcal,

villages have been |ooking for alternative fuel sources, he
said. He cautioned nenbers that changing the bison status could
"l ock up" the peat resources in his district. He reported that
he has received nunmerous e-mails and while sone resources m ght
not be located in his legislative district, the Roads to
Resources program could be affected since the bison have the
ability to roamso far.

1:49: 37 PM

PAUL VERHAGEN, Staff, Representative Alan Dick, reviewed sone
docunents in nenbers' packets. He referred to the first
docunent titled, "Endangered Species l|law and Policy,"” which

details the US. Fish and WIdlife Services consideration of
| owering or "down listing" the wood bison from an endangered to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- April 6, 2011



a threatened species under the Endangered Species Act (ESA). He
next referred to a copy of the Federal Register dated February
8, 2011, which substantiates the potential to reclassify or
downl i st the wood bison from endangered to threatened species.
He highlighted a quote from the Wod Bi son News which noted one
runor was that the wood bison would be renoved from the

t hreat ened species status. |Instead, the ruling was reversed and
wood bison was added to the Endangered Species Act |ist, he
sai d.

MR. VERHACGEN then referred to a constituent blog dated 3/28/2011
that points out, in terns of federal categories of threatened or
endangered species, the simlarity between wood bison and pol ar

bears. The polar bear has been designated as being on the
t hreatened species list by the US. Fish and WIldlife Service,
which has had the effect of "locking up" 120 mllion acres in
Al aska. He expressed concern that this type of action could

occur in Interior Alaska if wood bison are re-introduced and if
a federal judge issued a ruling under the *“10(j)” provision of
t he Endangered Species Act (ESA).

1:51:52 PM

MR. VERHAGEN referenced a blog titled, "FWS Reclassifies Wod
Bi son as Threatened Not Endangered, Species." He said the blog
denonstrates that this is an enotional issue, noting the title
m sl eads readers from what actually happened. The second page
of the blog provides a five-factor analysis that shows threats
to wood bison are still present. The information also indicates
that tougher regulations my be enployed against existing
business in areas near threatened species. He turned to

information on the Endangered Species Law and Policy website
which indicates a Section 4(f) recovery plan under the ESA has
not been issued because a wld population does not currently

exists in the US. He expressed concern that once wood bison
were re-introduced in the US. the 4 (f) recovery plan could be
devel oped and i ssued. He surmsed any restrictions would be

i nposed at the tinme the 4 (f) recovery plan is issued.
1:53:19 PM

MR VERHAGEN referred to the Delta Bison Wrking Goup
recommendations following its January 11, 2011 neeting. He
commented that the Delta bison are not designated as threatened
or endangered by the ESA, but the report denonstrates the anount
of effort necessary to try to resolve the conflicts in Delta
Juncti on. He suggested the conflicts have been ongoing for 30

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- April 6, 2011



years. Still, the state has not found any solution to the
issues. He referred to the "fallout"” of introducing Delta Bison
resulted in unintended consequences, which he thought could have
been avoided if the |egislature had considered the issues.

MR. VERHAGEN pointed to a report in menbers' packets titled
"Estinmated Bison Damage to Delta Agricultural Fields - 2010
Charles Knight." This report details the 2010 estimted costs.
He suggested simlar wunintended consequences could occur from
the rel ease of wood bison. He predicted the potential years it
m ght take perhaps w thout resolution.

1: 54: 29 PM

MR.  VERHAGEN turned to a docunment titled "Intentional or
Uni nt ended Consequences?" He stated that the bill sponsor
presented this information to his constituents to give them
addi tional comentary on intentional or unintended consequences.
The next docunment titled "Wod Bison" provides information to
constituents specifically on wood bison. The last articles in
menbers' packets are copies of Wod Bison News which are
informative articles that detail +the efforts nmade to re-
i ntroduce wood bison into the wild in Al aska. He concluded that
t he sponsor supports introduction of wood bison, but only in the
event that wood bison are renoved from the ESA and are not just
reclassified froman endangered to a threatened species.

1: 55: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ asked whether other areas are also being
consi dered for the wood bison rel ocation.

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK answered first encountered the plan for
relocating bison in the Mnto Flats area. He related that when
he heard the phrase "Trojan Bison"™ used since the Mnto Flats
residents warned him of resource devel opnent issues that could
result from the relocation of bison. He was not aware of any
third | ocation under consideration.

1:56: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ requested an explanation of the difference
bet ween wood and pl ai ns bi son.

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK expl ai ned that these wood bison are the only

wood bison in North Anerica except for the herds located in
Canada. The plains bison are not endangered and a nunber of

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- April 6, 2011



herds exist in the Lower 48. He advised that these are the only
bison in all of the U S He reiterated his belief it would be
unwi se to introduce wood bison in the communities of Holy Cross,
Anvi k, Shagel uk, and Grayli ng.

1: 57: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ asked whether the wood bison are native to
the U. S.

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK responded that historically, between 100 to
500 years ago wood bison existed in the area. He reiterated the
DNR is limted to relocating the animals to an area in which
t hey previously existed.

1: 57: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether the wood and plains bison
in the Delta area could interbreed given that both are capable
of traveling thousands of mles.

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK answered he did not have scientific data to
base his answer, but offered his belief that nobility provides
yet another reason why this needs to be "brought to light" and
shoul d be scrutinized.

1:58: 41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE = KAWASAKI said he appreciated Representative
D ck's sounding of the alarm given the possibility of unintended
consequences. He offered his belief HB 186 would delay the
relocation for at least a year. He asked what the sponsor
envi sioned would occur during that tinme, such as whether any
heari ngs woul d be hel d.

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK predicted that as soon as the people of Holy
Cross, Anvik, Shageluk, and Gayling heard both sides of the

issue, the entire matter may cone to a "screeching halt.” He
further stated that if his constituents were nmade fully aware of
all of the issues and still decided to nove forward with re-

i ntroduction of wood bison he would support the relocation of
wood bi son.

2: 00: 26 PM

REPRESENTATIVE MJUNOZ said it appeared that the state Al aska
Departnment of Fish and Gane (ADF&G has been working on this

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- April 6, 2011



issue. She inquired as to whether the departnment has acquired a
“10(j )" exenption fromthe ESA

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK understood that the “10(j)” exenption is
being crafted in a way that m ght speak specifically to the wood
bi son. He still questioned what "piece of paper" could be
signed in Washington D.C. that could be trusted in Al aska.

2:01: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNOQZ inquired as to the tineline for this
proj ect .

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK answered that the anticipated date for re-
i ntroduction of wood bison has been scheduled for the spring
2012. This bill mght delay that action by a year, he said. He
offered the possibility that HB 186 would not delay the re-
i ntroduction of wood bison. He suggested that people may w sh
to re-introduce bison due to noose or caribou herd reductions
and just suffer the unintended consequences.

2:02: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked for clarification with respect to
regard the “10(j).”

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK responded that because the proposed re-
| ocation of the wood bison is experinental the bison would be
exenpt from the ESA under the “10(j)” provision of the act. I n
further response to Representative Herron, he agreed that
experinmental equates to non-essential, which is the reason for
t he proposed exenpti on.

2: 03: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON related his understanding that currently
the departnment could stock game in other areas of the state. He
asked whether the departnent has followed its priorities based
upon habitat requirenents, population of native gane, ani mal
presence and other factors that would affect the successful
establ i shment of this species.

MR. VERHAGEN acknow edged those answers are yet unknown and is
one reason the sponsor introduced the bill.

2:04:31 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- April 6, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked whether he has asked ADF&G to
specifically address the statutes that pertain to re-
i ntroducti on.

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK answered he has held conversations wth
ADF&G, but has not witten any letters the departnent.

2: 05: 07 PM

CO- CHAIR SEATON recalled a simlar situation arose wth nusk
oxen. He asked for the availability of any correspondence that
relates to introduci ng nusk oxen.

REPRESENTATI VE DI CK said he did not know.

CO CHAIR SEATON offered his view that review ng what happened
with respect to nmusk oxen mght Ilead the conmttee to
di scussions of what might be applicable since an extinct
popul ati on was studied prior to being re-introduced.

2:06:10 PM

COCHAIR FEIGE inquired as to whether anything would prevent an
entity from suing once the wood bison were in place.

REPRESENTATIVE DICK recalled prior testinmony that some
environnmental groups said they did not intend to file against
the “10(j)” exenption due to the absence of potential resources
for resource devel opnent in the area. He acknow edged |awsuits

could happen but he was wunsure if any would. He further
recal l ed correspondence in opposition to the bill that suggested
the bill was based on paranoia. He said, "Just because you're
paranoid doesn't nean they're not out to get you." He
acknowl edged that even if the federal governnment does not renege
on the *“10(j)” exenption, the subsistence residents could
potentially end up being the litigants rather than hunters. He
concluded, "It's hard enough to live in that country."

2:07:58 PM

CO CHAI R SEATON recalled that the nusk oxen had been classified
as donestic animals before their re-introduction in Al aska. He
inquired as to whether the sponsor could investigate that matter
to perhaps find solutions to the issues with re-introduci ng wood
bi son.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- April 6, 2011



REPRESENTATIVE DICK acknow edged t hat was a brilliant
observati on.

2:09:15 PM

EDWARD GRASSER, Lobbyist, Safari Cub International, pointed out
the distinction that the Safari Cub International (SCl) is a
conservation group and not a preservation group. Bot h chapters
of the SCI support the re-introduction of the wood buffalo. He
offered one tenet of the SCI is to recognize the North Anerican

nodel for wldlife managenent. The SCI believes that this
project fits wunder the nodel, he said. He referred to
[ President] Roosevelt's idea that hunters and fishernmen would
pay a fee to support the conservation of species. He offered

his belief this approach has been nmuch nore effective than has
been the ESA's restrictions.

MR. GRASSER offered his view that this is not an "us versus
thent issue. As conservationists, the SClI believes the
i ntroduction of wood bison would be an economc boon to the
villages in the area and would enhance their subsistence
econoni es. The SCI believes multiple activities can occur and
shoul d not negate one in favor of another.

2:11: 48 PM

MR. CGRASSER referred to questions about the ESA' s “10(j)” rule.
He reported that the SCl's attorneys in Washington, D.C. have
been in court for 10 years with respect to the wolf de-listing
process and re-introduction of wolves in the Lower 48 in the
Northern Rocky Muntains and along the Geat Lakes. He
explained the “10(j)” rule, which is a process under the ESA
that allows for an exenption of that status involving

introduction of a species. The *“10(j)” process represents a
rul emaki ng process that includes non-government entities (NGOs)
as well as state agencies. He characterized the process as a
very involved process. He offered his belief that once
established under the “10(j)” rule the wod bison would not
i npact any other activity. He acknow edged questions exist on
whet her the federal governnment could unilaterally rescind the
“10(j)” rule. He said, "It's never happened and it's never been
overturned in court as far as our researchers can find." He

reiterated that the SC has available sone of the best
l[itigators in the world in its Washington D.C. office yet has
not discovered any instance in which the court ruling has been
overturned. He related that if the federal governnent wanted to
rescind the rule after the wood bison were re-introduced, the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- April 6, 2011



agency nust use the sane rul emaki ng process to overturn the rule

as it used to establish the rule. He reiterated the federal
government could not wunilaterally make the decision to rescind
the “10(j)” rule. He said he thought that represented a

significant point in this equation.
2:13:34 PM

MR. CGRASSER recalled a simlar instance in which the SC was
approached seven years ago by sonme of the principals in the
nmovenent to ban the Pebble Mne. He provided his involvenent as
serving on the national Board of Directors of the national SCl.
He al so served as the field representative of the National Rifle
Association (NRA) at the tine. He hel d extensive conversations
with these groups, but neither one has opposed the Pebble M ne.
He affirmed the SCl's view that the Pebble Mne process should
go forward and the sanme should hold true for the wood bison
proj ect . The SCI has been involved in the wood bison issue
since the 1980s. He explained that the SCI has worked with the
ADF&G and has invested a significant amount of noney into the

proj ect . Thus, the SCI has had a stake in this and has wanted
the project to nove forward. He acknow edged problens that the
ESA has caused for Alaska on issues. Therefore, the SCl has

laid groundwork to reform the ESA. He offered his belief that
sonme structural portions of the act coul d be anended.

2:15:18 PM

MR. GRASSER provided sone historical information on introduction
of the nusk oxen into Alaska, which happened prior to enactnent
of the ESA. He reported that re-introduction of wood bison has
been put off until the spring 2013 due to sone state actions.

MR. CGRASSER concluded that the SCI does not believe HB 186 is
necessary and is sinply reactionary. The SCI also does not
support inclusion of |egislative approval as part of the wood
bi son re-introduction since it would make it much harder to nove

f orward. He offered his belief that sone people would use the
bill to block re-introduction of the wood bison, whether the
rati onale was based on fact or not. The SCI opposes the bill

since the SCI does not support the wood bison project being tied
to the Delta bison project, he said. He offered his belief that
the SCI has invested over $300,000 thus far on the wood bison
proj ect .

2:17:26 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- April 6, 2011



COCHAIR FEIGE, with respect to his research on “10(j)” waivers,
asked whet her an injunction has ever been granted to tenporarily
stop a project while the |awsuit was eval uat ed.

MR. GRASSER was unsure but offered to research this and get back
to the commttee.

2:17:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON i nquired as to whether he was a nenber of
t he Al aska Bar Associ ati on.

MR, GRASSER answer ed no.
2:18: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON, based on M. Gasser's expertise, asked
whet her t he wood bi son could survive wolves in the wld.

MR. GRASSER said he was unsure they would be able to survive
wol ves. He reported that in his experience wolves are very
efficient predators and can take down any aninmal they want. He
deferred to the ADF&G to nore definitively answer the question.

2:18: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNOZ asked him to elaborate on the factors
sl owi ng down the “10(j)” exenption

MR. GRASSER related his understanding of the original agreenent
whi ch included that once the wood bison popul ation was restored
general hunting would be all owed. The SCI has stated it would
not support a “10(j)” rule that did not contain a specific
provision to allow hunting. He said that the current version of
the “10(j)” rule does not address hunting so the SCI and ADF&G
do not support the proposed changes.

2:19:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ asked if the “10(j)” exenption were granted
it is possible that hunti ng woul d not be all owed.

MR. CGRASSER answered that if the “10(j)” rule passed with an

al l owabl e hunting provision, then hunting definitely would be
al | owed.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- April 6, 2011



REPRESENTATIVE MUNCQZ recalled his earlier testinony that the
federal government has been considering not allow ng hunting.

MR. GRASSER responded that the USFW5 did not add in the hunting
provision. He clarified that the federal governnent cannot just
"W lly-nilly" rescind the “10(j)” rule, but nust adhere to the
process.

2:20: 55 PM

CO CHAIR SEATON, with respect to general hunting, asked whether
the “10(j)” rule would need to include specific |anguage to
al | ow general hunting and not just subsistence hunting.

MR. GRASSER agr eed. He reiterated that currently the “10(j)”
rule does not include specific |anguage to allow hunting which
is why the SCI opposes the current rul e-nmaking process.

2:21:49 PM

M KE SATRE, Executive Director, Council of Al aska Producers
(CAP), on behalf of the CAP, explained the CAP is a non-profit
trade association representing the producing large netal mnes
and maj or resource devel opnent in Al aska. He spoke in support
of HB 186, which would require the legislature to approve the
importation or relocation of wood bison in the State of Al aska

He pointed out several things the bill does not do, including
that it does not prevent the introduction of wood bison in what
appears to be its natural habitat. This bill would not

interfere with the rmanagenent of the wood bison into a
sustainable herd that may provide neat or hunting revenues into
rural Al aska. He acknow edged that HB 186 would require the
| egi slature to approve of the actions of the conmm ssioner with
respect to the inportation or relocation of wood bison in the
state. The CAP does not have any project in the vicinity of the
proposed wood bison project, but would like to be certain the

full ram fications of such a re-introduction will be considered.
He understood a detailed process has ensued. He hoped that
passing this bill would only be limted to adding tine to the

approval process and would allow the legislature tine to
consider any potential negative effects it my have on rural
Alaska with respect to application of the federal ESA He
pointed to simlar issues with respect to polar bears, Beluga
whal es, and Steller sea |ions.

2:23:53 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- April 6, 2011



MR. SATRE answered that the currently proposal nmay be covered by
exenption to the ESA as nentioned in earlier testinony.
However, that may not always be the case as the herd gets bigger
and broadens its range. A petition exists to renove the “10(j)”
exenption and cover the herd as a threatened or endangered
species in the future. He acknow edged the possibility possible

that type of listing could limt developnental activity. He
expressed the CAP's concern about any action that would limt
access activities in rural Alaska for devel opnment. He supported

passage of HB 186 to allow legislature tinme to ensure that
“10(j)” exenption is in place to protect Alaskans ability to
live and recreate in rural Alaska and to consider any inpacts
the ESA may have, with respect to the wood bison. He said,
"Rural Alaskans and their way of life is a truly endangered or
threatened species and we want to nmake sure we aren't doing
anything to affect them"™ he said. In response to Co-Chair
Seaton, he offered to conpile and submt witten testinony.

2:26: 39 PM

BRYCE WRI GLEY stated while he is unconcerned with wood bison
being re-introduced, but expressed concern that the re-
i ntroduction of wood bison could limt other devel opnent. He
rel ated he has held numerous conversations with ADF&G He al so
expressed concern with regard to the 133,000 acres in Mnto
Flats area since it lies within traveling distance for the wood
buffalo in the Nenana-Tochaket area. He reiterated his concern
that re-introduction of wood bison could potentially jeopardize

devel opnent of the Mnto Flats area. He recalled, under the
“10(j)” rule, that in the event the wood bison population
dimnished it would not affect gane nmanagenent. However, he

said he was not convinced the ADF&G woul d exert effort to renove
any obstacles that could inpact the herd. He feared that if
ADF&G did not take action the federal governnent would do so.
He recalled when wolves were re-introduced in the Lower 48 in
the Yell owstone Park area. He indicated Montana and |daho took
game managenent actions with respect to wolves but had been
overruled by the federal governnent. He felt simlar actions
could ensue with respect to the wood bison even with the “10(j)”
rul e.

2:29:18 PM
MR. WRIGLEY reported that alnost all legal challenges to the
“10(j)" rules tended to be taken up on nore obscure species. He

t hought anything as iconic and Anerican as a bison would
generate enotional support and efforts would be taken to ensure

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- April 6, 2011



the wood bison's' survival. He suggested in his research the
only chall enges that approximte the wood bison were challenges
to the whooping crane and the California condor.

MR WRIGLEY referred to the belief that the federal agencies
woul d not exert any pressure since the federal rule under the
ESA only requires consultation on endangered species. He
offered his belief that view represents a naive assunption by
ADF&G. He suggested a nunber of ways exist for the federal
government to exert pressure on state agencies, including
wi t hhol di ng mat ching funds or by "bullying."

2:31:12 PM

M. WRIGEY sunmarized three challenges to re-introduction of
the wood bison: the legal challenges to the “10(j)” rule and
whet her the rule could be upheld; the federal interference in
t he nmanagenent of the wood bison herd, which could "lock up"
resources; and the amount of |and necessary for agriculture,
which could Iimt other uses.

2:32:16 PM

DON QUARBERG stated he has resided in Delta Junction for 35
years. He has served on the Delta Wrking Goup since its
i nception. He related that the DW5 is a managenent group for

the Delta bison. Additionally, he has served on the local Fish
and Gane Advisory Commttee but is representing hinself today.
He took exception with Representative Dick's statenent that
ADF&G has done nothing to resolve the Delta bison herd

conflicts. He related that ADF&G has done the follow ng:
cl eared and devel oped several thousand acres of bison range,
planted grasses and snmall grains as forage for the bison,

devel oped a supply of fresh water, placed salt blocks to attract
bison to the range, conducted forage trials to inprove forage
quality and to identify new and better forages. Addi tionally,
the ADF&G has worked with the University of Alaska to devel op
native grasses on the range, worked with the U S. Arny to create
additional forage on mlitary |I|and. Further, the ADF&G has
devel oped hunting regulations to inprove hunter success of in
harvesting bison. He commented that hunters supported doubling
their fees to provide additional funding to enhance the bison
range. He remarked that regulations changes have changed
hunti ng seasons to better manage the bison hunts, established an
early hunt on private lands to better manage the bi son novenent
off private lands, and have allowed the use of ground-based

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 28- April 6, 2011



comuni cation such as <cell phones and satellite phones to
enhance the harvest.

2:34:33 PM

MR. QUARBERG rel ated that ADF&G has unsuccessfully attenpted to
work with land owners to allow bison hunting on all farm |and.
Thus, sone farnms essentially have essentially beconme bison
sanctuaries and t hat makes gamne managenent difficult.
Additionally, the ADF& G has been unsuccessful in creating a
share-cropping program to increase forage production on bison
range. He recalled criticismon the location of the Delta bison
range in close proximty to farns. He suggested that when the
| and was designated as the bison range it was |and considered
unsuitable for farmng by the Agriculture Action Council during
Governor Hanmmond's admi nistration. He further recalled the
| egi sl ature passed the proposal which becane the bison range.

2: 35: 36 PM

MR. QUARBERG spoke to his witten coments on HB 186, which had
been forwarded to the commttee. Many people believe that
wildlife should be allowed to be re-introduced and re-
i ntroducing wood bison would create a wildlife asset for the
State of Al aska, he said. He related his understanding that
commi ssioners nust undergo confirmation by the |egislature and
are charged with managing wildlife for Al askans. He supported
the sponsor's concern on the court action on the “10(j)” ruling
as a valid concern. He remarked that everything Al aska does is
ultimately subject to a judge's ruling. He expressed his view
that HB 186 is unnecessary. He encouraged nenbers to oppose the
bill.

2:37: 33 PM

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director, Alaska Mners Association
(AMA), on behalf of the AVMA, referred to a letter in nmenbers'
packets, which read [original punctuation provided]:

My nanme is Steve Borell, | am Executive Director of
the Alaska Mners Association and | am testifying on
behal f of the Associ ation.

| believe you have our letter to Rep Dick in your
packets so | wll not read that but will make a few
addi ti onal comments. We applaud the ongoing efforts
of ADF&G to find a way to nake this work while stil

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -29- April 6, 2011



protecting the State from the untended consequences of
a listing under the Endangered Species Act.

| f the Whod Bi son can be excluded from being |isted as
“Endangered” or “Threatened” by use of ESA Sec. 10(j)
as “non-essential experinental population” would be a
good step but we feel that the requirenment for the
Al aska State Legislature to approve this is inportant,
at a m nimum

W are aware that sone officials within the US Fish &
Wldlife Service have stated that the Wod Bi son woul d
not be listed as “endangered”, but as “threatened” and
that they can provide a prom se under Sec. 10(j). W
appreciate that if Sec. 10(j) was changed to exenpt
the Wod Bison, a second rul emaking would be required
to later change Sec. 10(j) and elimnate that
exenpti on.

However, we would point out that this is the sane
agency that listed the Beluga Wale based on bad
science and the Polar Bear based on political science.
These exanples have shown that the USF&AS can no
| onger be considered a credible independent science-
based voi ce. Al so, the USF&W5 cannot ensure the
outcone of a suit that will inevitably cone from sone
envi ronment al NGO,

Regarding the bill, we recommend that the Legislature
consider anending the  bill to state that re-
i ntroduction of Wod Bison not be allowed until the

U. S. Congress passes legislation that nmakes it certain
that the Wod Bison cannot be listed as “endangered”
or “threatened” under the Endangered Species Act, and
that such re-introduction nust then subsequently be
aut horized by passage of an act by the Alaska State
Legi sl ature.

It would be wonderful if Wod Bison could be rel eased
but danger of ESA listing is just too great.

MR. BORELL asked to make a few additional comments. He
appl auded the ongoing efforts taken by ADF&G to try to make this
work given the possible unintended consequences of the ESA
listing. The AMA views excluding the wood bison from the
endangered or threatened by using the ESA s exenption under
“10(j)” as non-essential experinental population as a step in

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 30- April 6, 2011



the right direction. However, the AMA believes the |egislature
shoul d al so be a part of the approval process. He recalled sone
officials wthin the US Fish and WIldlife Service have
i ndicated that the wood bison would be listed as a threatened
speci es. Additionally, the USFWS indicated that prom se could
be issued under the ESA's “10(j)” rule. However, the AMA has
seen recent rul e-nmaking processes in which the agency has sinply
decided it will do sonmething and then takes action. He pointed
out that the USFW5 is the sane agency which listed the Beluga
whal e and the polar bear using incorrect science and politics to
do so. Thus, the AMA does not believe the USFWS can be
consi dered an i ndependent science-based voi ce, he said.

2:39: 59 PM

MR. BORELL suggested that HB 186 should be anmended to include
approval fromthe U S. Congress prior to re-introduction of the
wood bison to ensure the wood bison could not be listed as
endangered or threatened under the ESA He offered his belief
that the danger of an ESA listing is too great to allow re-
i ntroduction of the wood bison until all the necessary pieces
are in place.

2:40: 45 PM

EUGENE PAUL, Holy Cross Tribal Council (HCTC), stated that he is
a nmenber of the HCTC and has been a tribal chief for over ten
years. He has participated in nunmerous neeting with ADF&G and
locally in Gayling and Holy Cross. He recalled the ADF&G has
plans to build a corral in Shageluk to hold the wood bison for

at least six nonths to acclimte the bison to the habitat. He
spoke in opposition to HB 186 because of fear that the delay
could devastate the comrunities. He wunderstood that it could

take years for the herd to build up. He did not believe than
any roamng by the wood bison would inpact any of the
subsi stence species that the villages harvest, such as noose.
Additionally, the ADF&G has advised the comunities that the
wood bi son would not be conpeting with other ganme resources. He
understood that the regional corporation, Doyon, Limted, fully
supports the re-introduction of the wood bison. He pointed out
the regional corporation has already studied the mtter and

supports it. He related that ADF&G has actively kept the
vill ages i nforned. He reported that the four villages fully
support the re-introduction of the wood bison. In response to

Representative Dick, he answered that he has not seen the video.

2:43: 48 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -31- April 6, 2011



REPRESENTATIVE DICK urged M. Paul to watch the video which
would illustrate what he is attenpting to do. He highlighted
his concern that residents have only heard one viewpoint. He
cautioned that viewpoint was nade by people who will benefit the
nmost from the wood bison's re-introduction. He sinply would
like the people to be aware of all inplications, including the
possibility that the ESA could be invoked. He said, "My concern
is the bison are going to be free roamng and the people are

going to get penned up.” He urged M. Paul and other residents
to view the video. He reiterated his earlier commtnent that if
people still want the bison after hearing the other side of the
argunent, he will support their decision.

2:46: 05 PM

STEVEN MENDI VE stated that he has been affiliated wth the
Alaska WIldlife Conservation Center, but is speaking today on
his own behalf. He explained that the U S. has been involved in
bi son restoration for over 100 years. He related that the wood

bi son was discovered in Canada approximtely 60 years ago. He
offered his belief that science and sound biol ogical review has
hel ped to ensure a sustainable wood bison resource. Over the

course of tinme several areas denpnstrate strong success in re-
i ntroduction of wood bison. He noted how fortunate it is that
Al aska has habitat distinctly needed for wood bison. He
appl auded the extent that ADF&G has undergone to ensure a
di sease-free herd could be inported into the state from Elk
| sl and, Canada, in particular, into Al aska' s habitat. He al so
noted the trenmendous challenges a restoration process takes,
especially given the nunber of concerns. He offered his view
that this process has been well orchestrated and does not need
further oversight. He said that he appreciates the sponsor's
concern, but the oversight 1is already in place wth the
conmmi ssioner's supervision, as well as seasoned staff who have
been on this project for over 20 years. He also said he was
surprised such strong opposition would arise anongst Al askans
when the resource is poised to serve all of Alaska's residents,
not just certain areas.

2:49:16 PM

MR. MENDI VE reported that Canada currently has six different
herds exceeding well over 6,000 animals in the wld. He
acknowl edged that sone  pocketed areas have experienced
chal l enges, but the herd on the western edge of Canada has an
over-the-counter purchase of hunting permts for bison so it has

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -32- April 6, 2011



wor ked wel | . He concluded this denonstrates the biodiversity
and ability to expand and remain predator resistant. He
suggested that so long as the herds renmain under 100 animals the
speci es woul d be consi dered sustai nable and woul d not be subject
to bear and wolf predation. He related the ADF&G has extended
itself to rural Alaskans in an open process that denonstrates
bot h sides and defines the advantages of re-introduction of wood
bi son. He remarked on the need to nove forward w thout adding
anot her | ayer of oversight that could delay the process.

2:50: 05 PM
[ HB 186 was hel d over.]

HIR 20- ROADLESS RULE & CHUGACH AND TONGASS HYDRO

2:50: 17 PM

CO- CHAIR FEI GE announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO 20, Urging the President of the
United States, the United States Congress, and the Secretary of
the United States Departnent of Agriculture not to inplenent
protection of inventoried roadless areas under the "roadless
rule” or otherwise restrict the developnent of necessary
hydroel ectric projects in the Tongass National Forest and the
Chugach National Forest. [Before the conmttee was HIR
20( ENE) . ]

2:50:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KYLE JOHANSEN, Al aska State Legislature, stated
that HIR 20 would urge the U S. President and the U S. Secretary
of Agriculture not to inplement protection of inventoried
roadl ess areas. He said he has had firsthand experience with a
project to fund two dans, the Swan Lake and Tyee Hydroel ectric
Pr oj ect. The district would like to connect the tw dans to
make an el ectrical grid. The initial plan was to build a road
al ongside for long-term maintenance and operation to nake it
cheaper to construct and naintain. However, since the road was
negotiated outside the plan, materials had to be brought in by
hel i copter. Additionally, all naintenance and operations mnust
be perforned by helicopter. He pointed out that the comrunities
are even having difficulty obtaining perm ssion for helicopter
| andi ngs. Thus, his district has had first-hand experience wth
the difficulties of building a project without a road and
suffering the additional project costs. He expressed concern
about the issuance of "roadless rule.”

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 33- April 6, 2011



2:52:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN reported testinony given before the
House Energy Committee with respect to the Blue Lake project in
Sitka. The comunity would like to increase the height of its
dam and the "roadless rule" puts into question whether that can
be acconplished. He noted a |ogical progression of events needs
to happen. This rule could be used to slow down or stop the
proj ect . He pointed out one challenge is that the "roadl ess
rul e designates just one person - a federal enployee back East
- to rule whether a road can be built. He predicted a "scary
future"” unless the "roadless rule is addressed. He noted that
Al aska's Congressional delegation conprised of U S Senators
Begich and L. Mur kowsKi and Congressnan Young support

chal l enging the "roadless rule.” In response to Co-Chair Feige,
he explained the difference between the original resolution and
the conmittee substitute (CS). He remarked that the House

Energy Conmittee overlooked the fact that U S President Cbanma
has set a goal of having 25 percent of the energy generated in
the U S. cone from renewable "green" resources by 2025. That
| anguage was added to the resolution, he said.

2:55: 08 PM

FLOYD KOOKESH noted that he is a fornmer mayor of Angoon and is
testifying on behalf of the current nmayor of Angoon, Al bert H.
Howar d. He read the followng witten statenent from Mayor
Howard, as follows [original punctuation provided]:

First of all thank you for the opportunity to speak on
such an inportant matter, that inpacts the future of
the community of Angoon as well as our community's of
sout heast and the State of Alaska for that matter. I
would like to thank my Representative Bill Thomas and
all the other representatives that have co-sponsored
this inportant House Joint Resol ution.

| am a firm believer in the public process, having
said that to ne the road less rule is a good exanple
of | eaving the public out of the process.

Al aska is a young infrastructure state conpared to the
rest of our country. The Roadl ess Rule has a negative
inpact in so many ways as far as getting much needed
projects built that serve for the betternment of our
communities and citizens of our state.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 34- April 6, 2011



| am sure in some ways the Roadl ess Rule serves a good
purpose for sonme, but as a blanket rule it hurts nore
then it hel ps.

| amtestifying in favor of and asking this governnent
body to support and pass House Joint Resolution No. 20
as it will send a unified nessage that this type of
Rule does not work for all and that we, as a state,
can inplenment our own rules as needed, thus allow ng
our state the right to self-determ nation

2:58:21 PM

JI' M STRANDBERG, Project Mnager, Al aska Industrial Devel opnent &
export Authority (AIDEA) and Alaska Energy Authority (AEA),
stated he is «currently a project manager for the AEA on
Sout heast Al aska projects. Thus, his coments on behalf of the
AEA are being presented from the perspective of the AEA s
position as a funder and developer of hydroelectric power
projects in the Tongass National Forest roadless inventoried
ar eas. He offered his view that the HIR 20 focused on a
difficult and time consum ng decision-naking process that
el evates local and regional decisions to the U S. Secretary of
Agriculture level. The AEA has concerns with this approach and
the effect on its ability to economically pursue projects, he
sai d.

2:59:29 PM

MR. STRANDBERG reported on energy projects, such that AEA, as an
i ndependent state agency receives capital appropriations for
construction the construction of hydro and transm ssion lines -
a nunber of which are in the inventoried roadless rule areas of
t he Tongass National Forest. He pointed out that the AEA was
the granting agency for the $46 nmillion conpletion of the Swan-
Tyee Intertie that Representative Johansen spoke of earlier. He
indicated that the AEA worked closely with the Southeast Al aska
Power Agency (SEAPA) in acconplishing the project. He
enphasi zed that the project was a significantly nore expensive
process because of the "roadless rule" requirenments and
conditions placed on the project. He reported the AEA has
expertise in alternative and renewable energy technol ogies and
manages the Renewable G ant Program A nunber of hydro projects
in the roadless areas are partially funded by the AEA s grant
program he said.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 35- April 6, 2011



3:00: 37 PM

MR. STRANDBERG rel ated the recent "roadl ess rule" decision could
have an inpact on the AEA s effectiveness on our projects. He
characterized the situation as being an energency situation.
The AEA has concerns about the approval processes which nust be
enpl oyed under the current rules to allow the AEA to proceed
timely and conpl ete the projects.

MR. STRANDBERG noted that while sonme nention was made in the
recent court decision of the ability to construct energy
infrastructure wthin roadless inventoried areas, econom ¢
access has not vyet been defined. He inquired as to what
constitutes econom c access. He used the Petersburg to Kake
Intertie project, which is currently in the permtting and
desi gn phases as an exanple. The econonmic life of this project
depends on the ability of the project team to use |ogging roads
for construction access and |ong-term maintenance of the Iine.
These economic access conditions nust also be known and
measureable during the tine of permtting, since funding
decisions are based on the viability of the projects and the
ultimate construction costs of the projects. He stressed the
i mportance of clarity of rules and access priority in order for
the AEA to pursue projects for its Southeast partners. He
expressed concern with the hydro power generation projects, as
wel | . He explained that in order to build these inportant
projects the AEA nust have on the ground access to place heavy
construction conponents, turbines, penstocks, and diversion
dans.

MR. STRANDBERG reiterated t hat clarity for practi cal
construction and long-term nmaintenance are a mnust for the
economc life of the projects. Cl ear and reasonable rules and
ti me-defined decision-nmaking processes wll lower the cost of
power for Southeast Al askans are fundanmental to the econonmic
recovery of the region, he said. He predicted that unreasonable
rules will cost noney and will directly affect the all Southeast
Al askans.

3:03:43 PM

JOHN SANDCR, Board Menber, Al aska-Canada Energy Coalition, noted
he first cane to Alaska in 1953 to conduct forest surveys in
Sout heast Al aska. He related he is a certified forester and
served as the U S. Forest Service's Regional Forester from 1976-
1984, and as the comm ssioner of the Alaska Departnent of
Environnmental Conservation from 1990-1994. He stated he is

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 36- April 6, 2011



speaki ng on behalf of the Al aska-Canada Energy Coalition. He
read fromthe followng witten statenment [original punctuation
provi ded] :

| am a Board Menber of the Al aska-Canada Energy
Coalition and want to report for your Hearing Record
that Coalition President Ernie Christian and Executive
Director Paul Southland have approved a Coalition
Resol uti on Opposi ng Reinstatenent of the Roadl ess Rul e
on the Tongass National Forest.

In  sumary, the Al aska-Canada Energy Coalition
Resol ution determned that the Roadless Rule wll
limt or preclude resource devel opnent projects on the
Tongass Nati onal forest Roadless areas including
devel opment of eighteen of twenty seven U S. Forest
Service Energy Program projects currently under
application and review on the Tongass National Forest.
A listing of these projects is attached to this
testi nony.

The Al aska Canada Energy Coalition Resolution supports
Al aska's appeal of the March 4, 2011 District Court
ruling reinstating the 2001 Cdinton Administration's
Roadl ess Rule on the Tongass National Forest. The
Coalition Resolution also supports efforts urging USDA
Secretary Vilsack finalize the 2003 interim rule
exenpting the Tongass National Forest from the 2001
Roadl ess Rul e.

Thank you wagain, for +the opportunity to testify.
Al aska House of Representatives Joint Resolution No.
20 will help assure Alaska' s National Forest-dependent
communities have access to the devel opnent of
resources that can strengthen their economcs and
quality of |ife val ues.

3:06: 38 PM

FRED MORINO referred to a handout in nenbers' packets titled
Al aska's Scenic Byways that highlights the scenic byways, which
represent 1,200 mles of roadways. He said he supports the
resolution, HIR 20, for many of the sanme reasons given by M.
Sandor, such as hydro, but also for tourism and access to
resour ces. He said he is a lifelong Al askan and believes that
Al aska should develop its resources to have control over its

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -37- April 6, 2011



destiny and to take over responsibilities from the federal
gover nnent .

3:07:47 PM

DUFF M TCHELL, Business Manager, Juneau Hydropower, Inc. related
that he grew up in Alaska and has lived nost of his life here
He stated that he currently serves as the business manager
Juneau Hydropower, Inc. He read from a prepared statenent as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

| am Duff Mtchell, Business Manager for Juneau
Hydropower Inc. Qur conpany has the FERC prelimnary
permt for the Sweetheart Lake Hydroelectric Project
which is |located about 35 miles south of Juneau. The
project is a 30 Megawatt (MN capacity project that
could contribute up to 136,000 Megawatt Hours (MAh) of
electricity for Southeast Al aska. W are currently on
track to develop this project.

| would like to thank you for the opportunity to speak

on favor  of passing this resolution. I woul d
personally 1like to thank Rep. Kyle Johansen for
sponsoring this resolution. | would also like to thank
Rep. Bill Thomas, Rep. Peggy WIson and Rep Bill

Stoltze for co-sponsoring this inportant House Joint
Resolution that sends a nessage to federal decision
makers that Alaska 1is serious about responsibly
devel oping our resources in an environnentally
sensitive manner.

My testinmony is to favor expeditious passage on HIR
20. It has Dbecone apparent that if the Tongass
National Forest is not exenpt from the admnistrative
Roadl ess Rule, and its subsequent inplenentation that
this rule could have a chilling effect on hydropower
devel opnent and transmission line infrastructure
wi thin Southeast Al aska that enconpasses the Tongass
National Forest. If not tinmely resolved, the inpact of
the Roadless Rule inplenmentation wll decel erate
current Al aska hydropower investnent, hold up our
region’s economc developnent, hasten our regional
popul ati on decline, and bl ock regional energy security
by depriving Alaska citizens and developers the
opportunity and their federal right under the Federal
Power Act to devel op renewable hydropower energy in
t he Tongass and Chugach National Forests.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 38- April 6, 2011



Ironically, it 1is our federal governnment that has
i nvestigated over 200 hydropower sites in Al aska. From
1900 to 1950 our federal governnent has spent mllions
in today’s dollars for hydropower investigations and
devel opment in what was then the Al aska Territory for
stream gagi ng, engineering and conducting geol ogical
reconnai ssance on potential Al aska hydropower sites.

Further because we were a territory with vast anounts
of public land, Al aska has dozens of federal Public
Land Orders, Power Site Cassification sites and
federal power wthdrawals in the existing Tongass and
Chugach National Forest signed by the Secretary of
Interior with authority delegated from the President
of the United States expressly reserving these Tongass
and Chugach |ands specifically for the hydropower
energy benefit of the citizens of the United States.
Sonme of these orders are over 90 years old and are
valid Public Land Oders today that predate the
Tongass Land Managenent Plan and the Roadl ess Rul e.

Further, the State of Al aska already has established
and recorded rights of way for roads and transm ssion
line corridors within the Tongass for the Southeast
Intertie transmission system W ask that Al aska
shoul d assert itself that the Roadl ess Rule should not
pr e- enpt t hese and ot her exi sting r oad and
transm ssion and wutility corridor rights provided to
the State of Al aska.

3:11: 40 PM
MR M TCHELL conti nued:

| would also like to point out that the US Departnent
of  Energy, US Departnent of Interior, and the
Departnment of the Arny all signed a 2010 Federal
Menorandum of Understanding on the pronotion of
hydr opower devel opment to “help neet the Nation’s
needs for reliable, affordable, and environnentally
sust ai nabl e hydropower..” The Secretary of Agriculture
was not a signatory of this docunent. Now that the
Roadl ess Rul e exenption for Al aska has been overturned
by Judge Sedw ck, | would suggest that it is tinely
that the President and Congress hasten to have the
Secretary of Agriculture becone a signatory on the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 39- April 6, 2011



2010 Federal Hydropower Menorandum of Understandi ng
and execute a new Alaska Roadless Rule exenpting
Al aska hydr opower and associ at ed hydr opower
transm ssion |ines.

HIR 20 provides a neans for Al askans under the
| eadership of this body to send a clear and
unequi vocal nessage to our President and Congress that
our federal governnment should be consistent and
unified in renewabl e hydropower energy devel opnment and
denonstrate sensitivity to Alaskan needs in this
matter. Exenpting Alaska from the administratively
created Roadless Rule wll allow Alaskan citizens,
devel opers and utilities the opportunity to assist our
Nation in | essening our Nation’s dependence on foreign
fuel sources, inprove our Nation's energy security,
and lessen our Nation's trade deficit inbalance.
Exenpting Al aska from the Roadless Rule provides the
opportunity for Alaskans to develop our Nation's
hydropower resources in the Tongass and Chugach
National Forests in an environnmentally sound rmanner
for the betternent of our Nation which these pre-
existing public land orders and power withdrawal sites
were originally intended.

| urge the Resources Committee to pass this resolution
and request t hat House and Senat e menber s
expeditiously pass HIR 20. Agai n, I thank the
Resources Conmittee Chairmen and nmenbers for the honor
and privilege in allowing nme to speak on this matter.

3:14: 00 PM

SHELLY WRI GHT, Executive Director, Southeast Conference, on
behal f of the Southeast Conference reading from a proclamation
by President Roosevelt, read, as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

And now, first and forenpbst, you can never afford to
forget for a nmonment what is the object of our forest
policy. That object is not to preserve forests because
they beautiful, though that is good in itself; nor
because they are refuges for the wild creatures of the
wi | derness, though that, too, is good in itself; but
the primary object of our forest policy, as of the
land policy of the Unites States, is the making of
prosperous hones. It is part of the traditional policy

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -40- April 6, 2011



of home nmaking in our country. Every ot her
consi deration comes as secondary. You yourselves have
got to keep this practical object before your m nds:
to renenber that a forest which contributes nothing to
the wealth, progress, or safety of the country is of
no interest to the Governnent, and should be of little
interest to the forester. Your attention nust be
directed to the preservation of forests, not as an end
in itself, but as the neans of preserving and
i ncreasing the prosperity of the nation.

3:15: 27 PM

M5. WRI GHT expl ained the value of HIR 20 as two-fold. First and
forenost, the people who have been living in the Tongass
Nati onal Forest have been fighting this resolution for years,
she said. She characterized the people as scratching and
clawing over the "roadless rule" for years. She related the

beauty of HIR 20 is that the state would be standing behind the
peopl e saying it has had enough. She urged nenbers to pass this
resolution and stand behind the people of Southeast Al aska to
tell the government that Alaska needs to have sone use of its
| ands, assert the necessity of the hydro projects, and be able
tolive on its land and survive.

3:16:41 PM

PETER NAOR(QZ, General Manager and President, Kootznoowoo, |Inc.,
on behal f of Kootznoowoo, Inc. stated that his corporation is a
village corporation for the comunity of Angoon |ocated in the
center of Admralty Island. The corporation consists of 1,065
sharehol ders, with about 25 percent residing in Angoon and the

remai ni ng shar ehol ders resi ding in Juneau and Si t ka.
Additionally, the corporation has interests in this "roadl ess
rul e" because Admralty Island is a national nonumnent

wi | derness. As part of the Al aska Native Settlenent C ainms Act
(ANSCA) settlenment, the corporation negotiated the ability to

build a hydroelectric project on the island. The "roadl ess
rule" does not specifically inpact Kootznoowo, Inc. since it
lies in a wlderness. He explained the corporation requested
this specific provision from the Congress because it did not
trust the powers to be in the future. However, Koot znoowoo,

Inc. selected lands on Prince of Wales Island close to where
Representative Johansen |lives. The corporation would desires to
have roads in its 23,000 acres connected to the system but it's
not likely due to this "roadless rule.™ He pointed out
resources that belong to Alaska that are inaccessible, that sone

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -41- April 6, 2011



comunities want to be part of econonic devel opnment, or have the

opportunity to drive to work. He exclained that Alaska is in
the 21st century. In 1952, the blue book described the
potential of energy in Al aska as $200 million. He was unsure of

the value in today's dollars. He offered support for HIR 20
because "it shines a light" on a very dark spot and a problem
that this state has."”

3:19: 30 PM

MR. NAORQZ stated that even before the exenption was overturned
by federal Judge Sedw ck, the corporation had a difficult tinme
getting permssion to do things on the Tongass National Forest.
He stated that his conpany provided 25 pages of comments on the
Tongass Land Use Managenent Plan (TLUWP). He related that the
Koot znoowoo, Inc. asked for two corridor sections, which were
conpletely ignored. The Kootznoowoo, Inc. has an appeal sitting
her e. One corridor would provide a reliable back door for
Juneau's power and the other one would take power across its
Prince of Wales land to the N black M ne. He further related
that while the corridors were to be discussed later, the
exenption is gone and we have "death by a thousand paper cuts.”
He hoped the light is bright enough with passage of HIR 20 for
Presi dent Cbama to wake up and realize that this is the nmeans to
achi eve renewabl e energy goals. He offered Kootznoowoo, Inc.'s
support to the commttee, with respect to HIR 20.

3:21:16 PM

M KE SATRE, Executive Director, Council of Al aska Producers
(CAP), on behalf of the CAP, related that the renoval of
exenption from the Tongass National Forest from the "roadl ess
rule” is a "slap in the face, a kick in the gut, and a spit in
the eye" to any resident of Southeast Al aska who wants to ensure
that we have an econom cally viable population into the future.
This resolution particularly addresses the electric projects in
the region which are critically inportant for potential mning
projects but for the sustainability of existing mning projects.
He enphasi zed the inportance of HIR 20 in terns of diesel prices
and the need to develop hydro sources to ensure sustainable
energy. He urged nenbers to pass this resolution fromconmttee
with their full support.

3:22: 55 PM

ERIC LEE stated he is a comercial fisherman who has lived in
Petersburg his entire life. He said that Petersburg is |ocated

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -42- April 6, 2011



on Mtkof Island, a small island in the mddle of the Tongass
Nat i onal Forest. He has seen the danage done by the extensive
roads for |ogging on Mtkof 1Island. He has observed the damage
to habitat and fish streanms caused by |ogging roads. He related
that Mtkof Island is 24 mles long but has over 150 mles of
r oad. Many other islands have also seen nunerous roads built.
He offered his belief that the roads have resulted in a serious
decline in deer populations and damage to sal non stream spawni ng
habitat due to silt and blockage due to inproperly installed
cul verts. He said he believed the problens will only be nade
worse if additional roads are allowed and that residents would
be far better off by properly maintaining the currently road
system protecting the last roadless areas in the Tongass
Nati onal Forest for future generations. He remarked that any
percei ved concerns regarding hydro projects can and wll be
dealt with through specific adjustnents to the "roadless rule.”
He concl uded that the concerns addressed today will prove not to
be valid. He offered his support for the "roadless rule.” He
said he thought it would protect what is left of the Tongass for
the future.

3:25: 24 PM

MARI LYN LELAND, Executive Director, Al aska Power Association
(APA), on behalf of the APA, related that the APA is a statew de
association that provides power to nore than a half mllion
Al askans from Barrow to Southwestern Alaska, through the
Interior, and Southcentral Al aska to Southeast Al aska. She said
that the APA strongly supports HIR 20 opposing the federal
adm nistration's wunreasonable efforts wth respect to the
i npl enentation of the "roadless rule" regulations for the
Tongass and Chugach National Forests.

M5. LELAND stated that Alaska is blessed with an abundance of
hydro resources from its |akes and streans that can be built

with mniml inpact. Most new hydro devel opnment in Al aska
replaces costly, finite, and l|ess environnental benign fossil
generation fuels, typically diesel, coal, and natural gas.

Hydro devel opnent has been encouraged and projects are being
pursued from Sout heast Al aska, the Railbelt, Wstern Al aska and
the Aleutians. Special use permts necessary in "roadl ess rule"
areas of national forests must now be individually signed by the
U.S. Secretary of the Departnent of Agriculture. Addi tionally,
to the "roadless rule" permts, forest land use plans nust be
anended to accommobdate hydro projects |ocated in designated back
country areas of our national forests. These federal actions
could add a year or longer to the hydro project approval process

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -43- April 6, 2011



seriously jeopardizing the three vyear tine frame in which
applicants are bound to perfect their permts. The "roadl ess
rule" creates an unnecessary inpedinent to the FERC process.
She predicted that it is possible some hydro projects could be
killed by this rule. She urged nenbers to nove HIR 20 and for
the |l egislature approve this resolution.

3:27:54 PM

JOSEPH SEBASTI AN stated that he is a 33-year Al aska resident and
has worked as a commercial fisherman and a honesteader. He said
the Prince of Wales Island's history was highlighted in earlier
testinmony. In 1952, the Prince of Wales Island had | ess than 50
mles of road on the entire island. However, by 1997, when the
pulp mll contract expired the island had expanded its road
system to 4,500 mles of road. He stated this trend happened
across the entire U S He characterized it as public |ands
faci ng maxi nrum exploitation and w thout any action public |ands
woul d di sappear. He heard previous speakers stating they were
not done "exploiting" the Tongass yet, but that type of thinking
never ends. He related that the current "roadless rule"
decision is in a state of flux between the <court, the
plaintiffs, and the U S. Forest Service. He related his
understanding that the parties involved have been working to
remove any inpedinents to hydro projects since all parties
recognize the inportance of hydro to Southeast Alaska, in
particular, not salnon-inpacting hydro projects. He remarked
that the parties overwhelmngly support the hydro projects. He
t hought this current ruling is a glitch and he anticipated that
all parties would work out an agreeable solution within the next
nmont h or two.

3:30:17 PM

MR. SEBASTIAN offered his belief that the "roadless rule"
protects the Alaskan way of life and the reason many people
initially came to Al aska. Roads cause the greatest danmge in
the Tongass National Forest through erosion. He reported the
U S. Forest Service's data estimtes 2,400 bl ocked culverts in
the Tongass National Forest alone. These bl ocked culverts no
| onger allow fish or snolts to pass and are considered damagi ng
to salnmon fish or production. He related that the "roadl ess
rule” protects the headwaters of streans. He characterized
these streans as class Il and class Il streans that flow into
class | streans. Many of the larger blocks of roadless
| andscape in the forest, such as the Ceveland Peninsula, Port
Houghton on the nmainland north of Petersburg, and East Kuiu

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -44- April 6, 2011



areas are on ADF&G s 19 top-produci ng watersheds in Southeast

Al aska. He characterized these areas as "treasure troves" of
sal non, bear, deer, bear, npbose, and nountain goats. He stated
that these areas represent valuable habitat and resources. He
said, "These aren't just places that, you know, are willy-nilly
being renoved from the public trust. They remain in the public
trust for the use of the public. They're just renoved from a
| evel of "exploitation"." He remarked that it's done so nuch

damage in the Tongass National Forest.
3:32:17 PM

MR. SEBASTI AN said he views the "roadless rule”" in the sane way
he that he views the Al aska Permanent Fund, which is that this
area has been land set aside for the future. He pointed out the
currently <climte <changes in northern and western Al aska
denonstrate the natural circunstances beyond our control
Al aska has been losing its icepack, which has caused villages to
be washed away. These roadless areas and the protection they
enjoy could be preserved for the future. He surm sed that the
state may be able to charge noney for the lands as a carbon
bank. He stated that these lands represent a national reserve
for our children and future residents of this state. He urged
menbers to take a long-term view to consider the resources,
including the fragile nature and exploitation of the resources
changes the very nature of them He offered his support for the
"roadl ess rule" and urged the conmmittee to do the sane.

3:33: 58 PM

TIM ROONEY, Borough Manager, Cty & Borough of Wangell, on
behal f of the City & Borough of Wangell (CBW, spoke in support
of HIR 20. He said he also serves as second vice president of
Sout heast Conference and the Wangell alternate on the Southeast
Al aska Power Association (SEAPA) board. He related that
protection of the inventoried roadless areas wll have a
detrinental inpact on the ability to expand hydroel ectric power
generation and transm ssion in Southeast Al aska. He stated that
Wangel | has affordable electric rates, but it is one of only a
handful of communities with affordable energy rates in Al aska.
He offered his belief that if federal approval of hydro projects
doesn't happen that other comunities wl]l never get to
experience the affordable rates that his conmunity offers. He
offered his view that the continued burning of diesel fuel is
more harnful to the environnent than the devel opnent of any
hydro project. He referred to the governor's goal of generating
50 percent of energy in the state from renewable resources,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 45- April 6, 2011



whi ch i's in addi tion to Pr esi dent Bar ack Ghane' s
adm nistration's goals. He was unsure of how the goals would be

met if the "roadless rule”" were applied in this region. He
reported that the CBW adopted a nearly identical version of the
resolution before conmttee nenbers today. He encouraged

menbers and the legislature to do the sane.
3:35:46 PM

DAVE CARLSON, Chief Executive Oficer, on behalf of the
Sout heast Al aska Power Association (SEAPA), stated that the
SEAPA owns two hydro projects in southern Southeast Al aska,
along with approximately 170 mles of transm ssion |ines between
Ket chi kan, Wangell and Petersburg. He related that SEAPA
provi des 100 percent of Wangell's electrical generation needs
and half of Ketchikan's needs with hydro power. He stated that
SEAPA strongly supports HIR 20. He offered his belief that the
"roadless rule" rule is a killer to the econony, to new
transm ssion lines, and to new hydro projects. He expl ai ned
that 35 percent of the Tongass National Forest has been set
aside as nmonunments and wlderness and is off limts. The area
affected by the "roadless rule" enconpasses about 57 percent
that would be off limts. Added together, this would represent
92 percent of the national forest, he said. He reiterated it
woul d be very difficult to build new hydro projects under the
"roadl ess rule." He pointed out that he works "on the ground”
to maintain transmssion lines using helicopters. He affirnmed
earlier testinony, that helicopters cost approximtely $1,000
per hour. He remarked that the total ratepayer costs per KW
hour increase when utilities nust use helicopters rather than
roads to build and maintain transmssion lines and hydro
projects. He reiterated SEAPA's strong support for HIR 20.

3:37: 26 PM

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director, Alaska Mners Association
(AMA), offered the AMA's support of HIR 20. He paraphrased from

his witten testinony, as follows [original punct uati on
provi ded] :
My nane is Steve Borell, | am Executive Director of

the Alaska Mners Association and am testifying on
behal f of the Associ ati on.

We  support House Joint Resolution 20 opposing
i npl enentation of the roadl ess rule.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -46- April 6, 2011



The roadless rule has been a noving target since it
was first introduced. The dinton Admnistration
changed its mnd two tinmes during rul emaki ng regarding
whet her or not the nationwi de Roadless Rule should
apply to the Tongass National Forest before making a
third change by extending the Rule to the Tongass
Nat i onal Forest on January 12, 2001.

In 2001 the State of Alaska litigated the Final
Roadl ess Rule on the ground, anobng others, that it
violated 8 1326 (a), the "no nore" clause of the
Al aska Nati onal | nt er est Lands Conservation Act
(ANI LCA) . In 2003 the Federal Governnent settled the
State's lawsuit by pronulgating an interim rule that
exenpted the Tongass National Forest from the Roadl ess
Rule and Alaska renmained exenpt wunder the "State
Petition Rule" pronulgated in 2005. The Tongass
remai ned exenpt under the interimrule even after the
Ninth Grcuit Court of Appeals struck down the State
Petition Rule in 2009.

However, on March 4, 2011 the District Court for the
District of Alaska determned that the interim rule
exenpting the Tongass had been pronmulgated in an
arbitrary and capricious manner and thus vacated the
exenption and reinstated application of the Roadl ess

Rul e.
The Roadless Rule will adversely inpact potential new
hydro-el ectric proj ects and t he infrastructure

required to support these projects, and it wll
adversely inpact exploration and mning activities
within inventoried Roadl ess Areas as well.

It is also inportant to know that the phrase
“inventoried roadl ess areas” does not necessarily nean
“Roadl ess Areas”. Many of the “inventoried roadl ess

areas” have an extensive road system and one of the
previ ous speakers stated that there may be as nmany as
4500 miles of logging roads in the Tongass. These are
roads that you can drive on with your car but nmany of
these have none the Iless been included in the
“inventoried roadl ess areas” and cannot be used by the
publi c.

The sanme thing has occurred in the Chugach Nati onal
Forest and one exanple is the Palnmer Creek road which

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -47- April 6, 2011



built in the early 1900s. This road was included in
the “inventoried roadless areas” but it was included
and today use by the public is not allowed due to the
Roadl ess Rul e.

MR. BORELL <concluded by reiterating the Alaska Mners
Associ ation's support for HIR 20.

[HIR 20 was hel d over. ]
3:40: 33 PM
ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Conmmttee neeting was adjourned at 3:40 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -48- April 6, 2011



